
Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA
Prif Weithredwr,
Chief Executive,
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP

DYDD IAU, 4 HYDREF 2018

AT:  YR AELOD O’R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS 
ARWEINYDD 

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD 
O’R CYFARFOD PENDERFYNIADAU ARWEINYDD Y CYNGOR 
A GYNHELIR YN Y SWYDDFA'R ARWEINYDD, NEUADD Y SIR,
CAERFYRDDIN AM 2.00 PM, AR DYDD IAU, 11EG HYDREF, 
2018 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI’R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR 
AGENDA ATODEDIG.

Mark James DYB

PRIF WEITHREDWR

 AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA
Swyddog Democrataidd: Martin S. Davies
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224059
E-bost: MSDavies@sirgar.gov.uk
Cyf: AD016-001

Pecyn Dogfennau



A G E N D A  

1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL.

2. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNOD 
PENDERFYNIADAU'R CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR Y 11EG 
MEDI 2018.

3 - 4

3. CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R CRONFEYDD GRANTIAU 
CANLYNOL: GRONFA CYLLID A DARGEDIR A'R CRONFA'R 
DEGWM.

5 - 24

4. ADRODDIADAU NAD YDYNT I'W CYHOEDDI.
WEDI YSTYRIED HOLL AMGYLCHIADAU'R ACHOS AC WEDI 
YNNAL PRAWF BUDD Y CYHOEDD GALL YR AELOD O'R BWRDD 
WEITHREDOL FARNU NAD YW'R EITEM CANLYNOL I'W 
GYHOEDDI AM EI FOD YN CYNNWYS GWYBODAETH 
EITHRIEDIG FEL Y'I DIFFINNIR YM MHARAGRAFF 14 O RAN 4 O 
ATODLEN 12A I DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I 
NEWIDIWYD GAN ORCHYMYN LLYWODRAETH LEOL 
(MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH) (AMRYWIO) (CYMRU) 2007.

5. CRONFA DATBLYGU EIDDO - DOLAWEN, CLOS FFERWS, 
CAPEL HENDRE.

25 - 38

6. CRONFA CYCHWYN BUSNES/TWF BUSNES SIR 
GAERFYRDDIN.

39 - 88

Sylwer: - Nid oes hawl gan y wasg a'r cyhoedd fynychu'r cyfarfod. Bydd y cofnod penderfyniad yn 
cael ei gyhoeddi fel arfer o fewn 3 diwrnod gwaith.



CYFARFOD PENDERFYNIADAU ARWEINYDD Y CYNGOR

DYDD Mawrth, 11 Medi 2018

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd: E. Dole (Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol).

Roedd y swyddogion canlynol yn bresennol yn y cyfarfod:
M. Bull, Rheolwr Rhaglen Strategol Adfywio Ffisegol;
B. Hale, Cydgysylltydd Datblygu Economaidd;
C. Owen, Cynorthwyydd Adfywio Cymunedol;
M.S. Davies, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 

Swyddfa’r Arweinydd, Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin 2.00 pm - 2.45 pm

1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL
Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau o fuddiant personol.

2. COFNOD PENDERFYNIADAU - 18 GORFFENNAF 2018

PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi bod cofnod penderfyniadau'r cyfarfod a 
gynhaliwyd ar 18 Gorffennaf 2018 yn gofnod cywir.

3. CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R CRONFEYDD GRANTIAU CANLYNOL: GRONFA 
CYLLID A DARGEDIR  A'R  CRONFA'R DEGWM

PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo'r ceisiadau canlynol am gymorth o Gronfa'r 
Degwm a'r Gronfa Cyllid a Dargedir yn amodol ar y telerau a'r amodau 
arferol ac ar y rhai a bennwyd yn yr adroddiad:

Ymgeisydd                                                                                      Dyfarniad
Neuadd Eglwys Sant Edmwnd                                                        £2,363.20
Canolfan Gymunedol y Mynydd Du                                                  £3,000.00
Menter Cilycwm                                                                           £3,000.00
Cyngor Tref Cwmaman                                                                £10,000.00

4. ADRODDIADAU NAD YDYNT I'W CYHOEDDI.

PENDERFYNWYD yn unol â Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, fel y'i diwygiwyd 
gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) 
(Cymru) 2007, na fyddai’r eitemau canlynol yn cael eu cyhoeddi, gan fod yr 
adroddiadau'n cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffiniwyd ym 
Mharagraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A i’r Ddeddf.

5. CRONFA CYCHWYN BUSNES/TWF BUSNES SIR GAERFYRDDIN

Ar ôl cynnal prawf budd y cyhoedd PENDERFYNWYD, yn unol â'r Ddeddf y 
cyfeiriwyd ati yng nghofnod rhif 4 uchod, beidio â chyhoeddi cynnwys yr 
adroddiad gan ei fod yn cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig am faterion ariannol 
neu faterion busnes unigolyn penodol (gan gynnwys yr Awdurdod oedd yn 
meddu ar y wybodaeth honno) (Paragraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A i'r 
Ddeddf).

Tudalen 3

Eitem Rhif  2



Yr oedd y prawf budd y cyhoedd o ran y mater hwn yn ymwneud â'r ffaith 
fod yr adroddiad yn cynnwys gwybodaeth fanwl am faterion a dyheadau 
busnes ac ariannol yr ymgeiswyr. Yn yr achos hwn, yr oedd y budd i'r 
cyhoedd o ran cadw cyfrinachedd yn drech na'r budd i'r cyhoedd o ran 
tryloywder ac atebolrwydd, gan y byddai datgelu'r wybodaeth yn debygol o 
niweidio'r ymgeiswyr ar hyn o bryd. 

Yn dilyn cofnod 3 o'r cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 19 Chwefror 2018 ystyriodd yr Aelod 
o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol geisiadau am gymorth gan Gronfa Cychwyn Busnes Sir 
Gaerfyrddin a Chronfa Twf Busnes Sir Gaerfyrddin. Blaenoriaeth y ddwy gronfa 
oedd cefnogi'r gwaith o greu swyddi a busnesau newydd yn y Sir. Nododd yr 
Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol fân newidiadau a wnaed i'r ddogfennaeth ar gyfer y 
naill Gronfa a'r llall, a ddigwyddodd yn sgil oedi wrth lansio'r cynllun a'r trefniadau 
ymarferol cysylltiedig.

PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo'r ceisiadau canlynol am gymorth o Gronfa 
Cychwyn Busnes Sir Gaerfyrddin a Chronfa Twf Busnes Sir Gaerfyrddin yn 
amodol ar y telerau a'r amodau arferol ac ar y rhai a bennwyd yn yr 
adroddiad:

Ymgeisydd                                                                    Dyfarniad
Corgi Hosiery                                                                 £10,000.00
Coaltown Coffee                                                            £10,000.00
Evans & Wilkins                                                             £2,499.50
Oreknot Creative Hub                                                    £2,233.64
Hafod Finance Solutions Ltd                                          £1,130.36
Ickle Bubba                                                                    £10,000.00
Trywydd                                                                         £2,500.00
Broadleaf Timber Ltd                                                     £10,000.00
Sonex 3 Financial Ltd                                                    £8,044.00
Atebol                                                                            £10,000.00
Ty Gofal Ltd                                                                   £9,842.72
Divine Health & Beauty                                                  £9,764.70

_______________________________ __________________
AELOD O’R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DYDDIAD

Tudalen 4



CYFARFOD PENDERFYNIADAU'R AELOD O’R BWRDD 
GWEITHREDOL - YR ARWEINYDD

11/10/2018
Yr Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol: Y Portffolio:
Cynghorydd Emlyn Dole Yr Arweinydd

CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R CRONFEYDD GRANTIAU CANLYNOL: 
GRONFA CYLLID A DARGEDIR  A'R  CRONFA'R DEGWM

Yr Argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:
Cronfa'r Degwm – Atodiad 1
3 Gais – Cyfanswm gwerth = £6,430.00
Gronfa Cyllid a Dargedir - Atodiad 2
1 Gais – Cyfanswm gwerth = £13,000.00
Cyfanswm nifer y ceisiadau =   4              Cyfanswm eu gwerth = £19,430.00
Rhesymau: 
Datblygu Cymunedau Cynaliadwy yn Sir Gaerfyrddin
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Helen L Morgan

Awdur yr Adroddiad:
Caroline Owen

Swydd:
Rheolwr Datblygu Adfywio a 
Pholisi

Swyddog Biwro

Rhif Ffôn: 01267 242367
HLMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Rhif Ffôn: 01269 590216
CAOwen@sirgar.gov.uk

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): None

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any):N/A
DECISION MADE:

Signed:  
____________________________________________________________DATE:_______
                                                                   EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  3



The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance 
at the meeting

Recommendation of Officer 
adopted

YES / NO

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified:

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted:

Tudalen 6



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING - LEADER

11th October 2018

Financial Assistance from the following grant funds: 
Targeted Finance Fund  & Welsh Church Fund   

To approve the following:
RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:
Welsh Church Fund – Annex 1
3 Applications – Total Vale = £6,430.00
Targeted Finance Fund – Annex 2
1 Application – Total Value = £13,000.00
Total Number of Applications -   4        Total Value = £19,430.00

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

IMPLICATIONS
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :
Signed:        Helen L Morgan        Development Manager Regeneration & Policy
Policy and 
Crime & 
Disorder 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Organisational 
Development 

Physical 
Assets  

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE  NONE NONE 

CONSULTATIONS
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below
Signed: Helen L Morgan        Development Manager Regeneration & Policy

1.Local Member(s)  As per individual reports
2.Community / Town Council   As per individual reports
3.Relevant Partners   As per individual reports
4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  As per individual reports 
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW     
Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public 

inspection 
Welsh Church Fund

Targeted Finance Fund

WCF-18-08
WCF-18-10
WCF-18-11
TFF-18-04

Rural Business Development Centre, Nant y Ci, 
Carmarthen. Carmarthenshire. SA33 5DR

Rural Business Development Centre, Nant y Ci, 
Carmarthen. Carmarthenshire. SA33 5DR

Tudalen 7



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1

Annex: 1
Regeneration & Leisure Executive Board Report

Welsh Church Fund 2018 - 2019
Report Author: Caroline Owen

CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01269 590216

Balance Available: £95,319.80

Report Value: £6,430.00

1 of 3

Application Reference – WCF-18-10

Project Title External Refurbishments
Applicant Llangathen Village Hall 

Project Description The hall has been extensively restored to its former glory since 
securing funding, with only external works to be completed and 
restoration of some windows.

The community now have a place to socialise, take exercise and 
enjoy cultural events that have engendered the community support 
and pride. 

Through extensive consultation undertaken, identifying the need for 
the restoration, to  enable a delivery of activities designed by the 
community, has been a great success and the hall is now providing 
these activities on a daily basis, including;

 Arts @ the Hall
 Pure fitness Pilates
 Jungle body konga
 Lau gar kung Fu
 Strong and slow yoga
 Keep fit classes 
 Knitting at the hall 
 Walking and gardening groups
 Swing dance
 Creative writing
 Bingo, whist & film evenings

The hall is now also an attractive venue for weddings and has 
undertaken 4 functions with further bookings being made for 2019, 
assisting in the long term sustainability.

Organisations, groups and Charities, now have a venue suitable to 
hold functions and events which have improved the recreational, 
cultural and educational needs of the community, which has 
positively impacted on people’s health and wellbeing, encouraged 
social interaction and reduced social isolation as well as benefiting 
the charities. 

Tudalen 9



2

Unfortunately, the exterior of the hall does not justify the internal 
refurbishments, also, the uneven grounds are dangerous for 
accessibility into the hall, especially for the elderly and disabled, 
more so when there has been heavy rain.

This project is to enable the grounds to be landscaped and new 
parking area laid, also disabled access paths and seating area. In 
order to carry out this work they will use volunteer labour from the 
community. 

Also, to install fitted roller black out blinds to the 6 bay windows, as 
the extensive sun and light has an impact on the majority of 
activities undertaken within the hall, as identified by its users, also 
afraid of damage  to the restoration of the parquet flooring, due to 
the direct sunlight, raising and fading the wood. 

Also a portable fold away stage is also required, to undertake 
various events, which has been identified, which need to be raised 
off the floor for maximum effect, in showcasing Arts, also theatre, 
choir and cultural events, enabling ease of viewing from the seated 
community.

Total Project Cost

Eligible Capital  

Eligible  Revenue

Ineligible Costs

£21, 896.48 - Gross

£889.42 – Concrete/sand/cement
£180.00 – Planters

£1,669.20 – Aggregate
£3,034.86 – Railway sleepers

£257.00 – Plants/trees
£486.00 – Soil/turf

£2,086.00 – Labour
£1,794.00 – Paving

£9,000.00 – 6 Fitted black out blinds
£2,500.00 – Portable Stage

Nil

Nil

Cllr and Officer 
Consultations 

Undertaken 

 Cllr Cefin Campbell

Ownership/ Lease Ownership 
Funding Package

Value of Community 
Investment 

Amount of grant 
requested 

£21,896.48

£21,896.48

£3,000.00 @ 13.7%

Tudalen 10



3

Value of Levered Funds £18,896.48
Lottery Awards for All - £10,000.00

Own funds secured - £8,896.48

Economic Benefit  Number of individuals into training/education 
 Number of individuals into volunteering - 20
 Number of individuals into employment 
 Number of community groups assisted - 12 
 Number of social enterprises created
 Number of social enterprises supported 
 Number of full time jobs created 
 Number of jobs safeguarded 
 Public and private leverage funding - £18,896.48

Officer Comments The outcomes of the project have proven the community to become 
stronger, people have a place to meet, and integrate, learning to 
enjoy the satisfaction of working together and decision-making on 
activities and services to be provided. 

Individuals and families have improved social interaction, which has 
fostered understanding and tolerance across all age groups also 
cultural/educational backgrounds, enabling families to become 
stronger, being able to participate in activities together as a unit and 
integrate with others. 

Officer Recommendation Award - £3,000.00

Subject to 

Tudalen 11



4

2 of 3

Application Reference – WCF-18-11

Project Title Development of a MUGA
Applicant Gate & District Welfare Association

Project Description Five years ago a survey was conducted regarding facilities at the 
hall and it emerged that a sports surface was a priority and the 
committee proceeded with plans to carry out the community’s 
request. This turned out to be very frustrating as initial plans to 
drain and re-seed the field to an open access playing sports field 
had to be abandoned due to the discovery of the Marsh Fritillaries 
habitat and agreement had to be made for the protection and 
management of this with Caeau Mynydd Mawr SAC project, a 
special area of conservation.
The past four years have been very challenging in undertaking 
consultation with various parties and the community in identifying a 
way forward in meeting the needs of the community but adhering to 
conservation restrictions, but agreement was finally made to 
support Butterfly Conservation Wales in conjunction with Caeau 
Mynydd Mawr and accepting that they can only utilise a reduced 
area of the field, and full planning permission has been received.
The hall is the hub of the community utilised on a daily basis for 
various activities and the community commitment and support is 
overwhelming, and whilst consultation was being undertaken 
regarding the field and to maintain community spirit and 
engagement, they received grants for various projects including the 
installation of a toddlers play area, raised beds and seating areas, 
which involved 20 volunteers from residents of the local and wider 
community and was conceived through consultation with children 
and parents in the local community.
The loss of the sports field amenity has been compensated by the 
proposed construction of a multi-use games area on a small part of 
the land and full planning permission has been received.
The proposed area at the rear of the hall will consist of 
approximately 600 sq. metres and the development has a very low 
risk element as careful consideration has been made of the safety 
element, with secure and rigid 2.4m height fencing around the 
perimeter, suitable surfacing, curved and rounded surfaces for 
sporting and structural appliances, accommodating areas suitable 
for 5 a side football, tennis and netball courts, indicated and 
identified by colour coding.
The MUGA will provide a ‘breathing space’ and play opportunities 
for the communities that surrounds it. The site already enjoys the 
support of the local community and visitors and the proposed work 

Tudalen 12



5

will increase its attractiveness through improving and increasing the 
facilities and widening the range of activities within the grounds.
The committee have engaged in separate consultation exercises 
with the local residents and wider community to identify their needs 
and views, resulting in this project development.

Total Project Cost

Eligible Capital  

Eligible  Revenue

Ineligible Costs

£87,392.00 - Gross

£87,392.00
£4,166.00 -  Equipment

£6,296.00 – Tarmacadam
£71,760.00 – MUGA

£5,170.00 – Design & Planning

Nil

Nil

Cllr and Officer 
Consultations 

Undertaken 

 Cllr Cefin Cambell
 Cllr David Thomas
 Jonathan Edwards MP
 Adam Price AM
 Amanda Evans – CCC Conservation Officer
 Alan Davies  - PCSO 
 Llanfihangel Aberbythych Community Council

Ownership/ Lease Ownership 
Funding Package

Value of Community 
Investment 

Amount of grant 
requested 

Value of Levered Funds

£87,392.00

£87,392.00

£3,000.00 @ 3.43%

£84,392.00
£79,222.00 - Lottery People & Places - Applied 

£5,170.00 - Own funds secured

Economic Benefit  Number of individuals into training/education 
 Number of individuals into volunteering - 20
 Number of individuals into employment 
 Number of community groups assisted - 1
 Number of social enterprises created
 Number of social enterprises supported 
 Number of full time jobs created 
 Number of jobs safeguarded 
 Public and private leverage funding - £84,392.00

Tudalen 13



6

Officer Comments Success of the project has been reflected on how successfully the 
play area has been embraced by the community, it has 
demonstrated a picture of change in the lives of the children and 
closer communities emerging, demonstrated by children playing 
outside on a regular basis contributing to a healthier and more 
physically active generation which is of benefit to the wider society.
The community engagement has continued to strengthen and even 
though the hall is well utilised for daily activities, the community 
wish to improve on this and provide the opportunity to include 
additional diverse use of the hall grounds, providing more 
opportunities for outdoor inter-generational activities.

Officer Recommendation Award - £3,000.00

Subject to 

Tudalen 14



7

3 of 3

Application Reference – WCF-18-08

Project Title Equipment & Marketing
Applicant Ammanford Community Theatre Group

Project Description Ammanford Community Theatre is a voluntary organisation which 
has been in existence for six years, producing theatre in the 
community and raising participation in the Arts, by creating sell out 
productions, such as Sleeping Beauty and Cinderella, held within 
Ammanford Miners Theatre.

The group will create and produce two brand new theatre 
productions to be held at the local Miners Theatre involving 
approximately 80 participants of all ages. The funding is required to 
purchase 12 microphones, additional staging and publicity. 

This project is for the group to purchase equipment and marketing   
of the organisation. They would like to purchase more staging as 
currently this is very minimal, by improving this they can raise the 
standard of their productions, also produce marketing material to 
promote and publicise their group, by creating banners, posters and 
flyers. They would also like to include adverts in the local press and 
create more online presence.  

They also want to purchase microphones, which will enable them to 
offer more singing opportunities rather than just acting and dance, 
through their partnership with a local dance company, especially in 
their pantomimes, which will attract a wider range of people to the 
group. 

It will enable the group to expand their repertoire and support other 
events in the area providing further opportunities for people in 
performance whilst also improving social cohesion and partnerships 
with other organisations in the area. 

This year they will be holding two productions, a comedy play in June 
and a pantomime in December.  They hope to develop their already 
successful beginnings by creating more community based theatre 
and engaging with a wider audience and by purchasing new 
equipment, they will be enhancing the experience not only for their 
participants but also their audience. This in turn will attract more 
people to the group, also more involvement within the arts in a wider 
sense. 

Being actively involved in a group like this encourages social 
cohesion and enhances connections and networks giving a 
stronger sense of place and identity. Community theatre and arts 
increase civic participation and foster a positive perception. 

They are hoping to develop more Welsh performances. 

Total Project Cost £4,300.00 - Gross

Tudalen 15



8

Eligible Capital 

Eligible  Revenue

Ineligible Costs

Nil

£4,300.00
£2,000.00 – Headset microphones

£600.00 – Removable staging
£200.00 – Printing equipment
£1,000.00 – Publicity material

£500.00 – Press

Nil

Cllr and Officer 
Consultations 

Undertaken 

 Cllr Kevin Madge
 Cllr David Jenkins
 Cllr Deain Harries
 Cllr Tina Higgins
 Cllr Betsan Jones
 Cllr Anthony Davies
 Cllr Glynog Davies
 Cllr Carl Harris
 Cllr Dai Thomas

Ownership/ Lease Ownership 
Funding Package

Value of Community 
Investment 

Amount of grant 
requested 

Value of Levered Funds

£4,300.00

£4,300.00

£430.00 @ 10%

£3,870.00
Secured from Mynydd y Betws

Economic Benefit  Number of individuals into training/education 
 Number of individuals into volunteering - 10
 Number of individuals into employment 
 No of community groups/organisations assisted - 3
 Number of social enterprises created
 Number of social enterprises supported
 Number of full time jobs created 
 Number of jobs safeguarded 
 Public and private leverage funding - £4,300.00

Officer Comments Ammanford Community Theatre's productions have been a sellout, 
and due to command have had to provide additional performances.

Being actively involved in a group like this encourages social 
cohesion and enhances connections and networks giving a 

Tudalen 16



9

stronger sense of place and identity. Community theatre and arts 
increase civic participation and foster a positive perception. 

They involve local craftspeople and builders in the creation of the 
staging and invite new people in to help paint the scenery and help 
as stage hands at performances

Officer Recommendation Award - £430.00

Subject to 

Tudalen 17



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Annex 2

Executive Board Member Decisions Meeting for the Leader
Targeted Finance Fund

2018 - 2019
Report Author: Caroline Owen

CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01269 590216

2018/19 Budget Available - £67,000.00

Report Value - £13,000.00

Application Reference:  TFF/18/04

Project Title Enhancement of Visitor Experience and Facilities at Cynheidre Heritage 
Centre.

Applicant Llanelli Mynydd Mawr Railway Company Ltd
Ward Glyn

Key Account 
Management

The Targeted Finance Fund is a discretionary fund available to Key Account 
Management (KAM) clients. For an organisation to become a KAM client 
they must be a third sector not for profit organisation that falls into one of the 
following 3 categories: 

 Existing social enterprises that have the potential to grow, be 
sustainable and create employment 

 Emerging projects that have the potential to create jobs
 Third sector organisations that deliver vital services within our 

communities

Project 
Description

The Llanelli & Mynydd Mawr Railway Company was established in 1999 with 
the initial aim to re-open the old railway track to the old colliery in Cynheidre. 
This historic line is recognised as Britain’s first operating public railway 
authorised by the Act of Parliament in 1802. 

Within the past eight years the company has purchased the freehold at the 
former colliery, a site that covers around 20 acres.

Since the incorporation of the charity, a huge amount of work has been 
carried out by 30 plus dedicated Volunteers, including the construction of a 
Heritage Centre and stock shed to house their existing engines and rolling 
stock. Also a platform has been built at Cynheidre and the initial rail for the 
running line has been laid.

They want to expand the project further by extending the running line to 
incorporate a longer travel distance, to running the buffet service more 
regularly for users of the cycle path as well as regular open days. This 
expansion will attract more visitors, increase footfall and boost income. 

Funding is required to enhance the visitor experience by:
 Extending and widening the train platform from 20 metres to 42 

metres in length and from 2 metres to 6 metres in width to 
accommodate two-carriage trains and a greater number of 

Tudalen 19

mailto:CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


passengers.
 Installing mains electricity on site (currently a generator is relied 

upon).
 Purchasing materials (ballast and rail fish plates) for use in an 

extension of the track to up to three-quarters of a mile.
 Clearing vegetation, ground clearance and installation of fencing to 

enable extension of the track and running of trains.
 Installing two crossings to accommodate the rights of the adjoining 

farm and safe running of trains.
 Installation of two existing picnic tables and provision and installation 

of two further picnic tables.

There will be many opportunities for people to become involved in activities, 
volunteering has been key to the success of the project and is a key factor in 
reducing isolation and promoting wellbeing and healthy lifestyles. The project 
provides opportunities for learning skills and provides work experience for 
those seeking a pathway to greater prosperity. 

The site affords opportunities for walking and cycling in the area and the 
company actively supports and promotes such pastimes.

LMMR has created a variety of wildlife areas, constructed a 90 metre pond 
and planted thousands of trees. The strategy is to ensure that the 
environmental aspects of the site will support and complement the other 
facilities to provide a unique visitor experience and to fully exploit the 
educational opportunities available.

They work closely with local schools who are enthusiastic about the 
opportunities for students to learn about the rich industrial heritage of the 
area and the unique ecological setting of the site. The involvement of schools 
is an ongoing commitment and covers a new intake of children each year, 
who undertake guided tours along the site, carry out projects involved with 
aspects of the history of the railway and have also assisted in environmental 
work, such as tree and hedge planting and to date several hundred children 
have been involved in this way.

The promotion of Carmarthenshire as a world class visitor destination is 
helping to boost the local economy, the project seeks to enhance this 
objective by providing a unique heritage attraction and the project was 
recently recognised by the Carmarthenshire Tourist Association as highly 
commended in the category of most exciting new tourism business.

All facilities at the site are fully accessible to all and currently every Saturday 
several people of differing ages and with varying degrees of learning 
disability attend with their carers to help with work on the site.

Economic Benefit  Number of individuals into training/education - 10
 Number of individuals into volunteering - 
 Number of individuals into employment - (in subsequent phases)
 Number of community groups/organisations assisted -
 Number of social enterprises created - 
 Number of social enterprises supported - 
 Number of jobs created – (in subsequent phases)

Tudalen 20



 Number of jobs safeguarded – 
 Public and private leverage funding - £61,057.25
 Increased awareness of local heritage – 10,000
 Increase in visitor numbers – 10,000

Total Project Cost

Eligible Capital

Eligible  Revenue

Ineligible Costs

Amount and % of 
grant requested

Match funding

£74,057.25- Gross

£74,057.25
£22,957.20 – Platform extension

£13,440.00 – Ballast
£20,264.71 – Mains electricity

£3,000.00 – Fish plates
£2,400.00 – Vegetation clearance

£3,600.00 – Track clearance
£5,136.68 – Railway crossings

£1,620.00 – Fence renewal
£1,638.66 – Picnic tables

Nil

Nil

£13,000.00 @ 17.6%

£61,057.25
£59,245.80 – Applied to the Welsh Government Tourism Amenity Investment 

Support (TAIS) Scheme
£1,811.45 – Own funds secured

Cllr and Officer 
Consultations 

Undertaken

Nia Griffith MP
County Councillor Jim Jones
CCC Planning Department 
Llanelli Rural Council
Llanelli Town Council 

Evidence of Need /
Community 
Engagement

Unlike local railway centres LMMR is a demonstration line. This means that 
the current line in place is along the same path as the original 
Carmarthenshire Tram road (pre 1800) and the Cynheidre Public operating 
railway (1802) which serviced the colliery at Cynheidre. Their aim is to 
provide a Heritage Centre and a full size steam and diesel demonstration 
railway.

A major local consultation exercise was undertaken at an early stage of the 
project and since then the Management Board supported by volunteers has 
consulted the community for input at every stage as to how best to meet the 
identified needs and develop the project.

Community engagement/support includes:
 Llanelli Chamber of Commerce
 The Princes Trust

Tudalen 21



 Probation Service
 Carmarthenshire Association of Voluntary Services
 The Bridgend Valley Railway
 Llangollen Railway
 Teifi Valley Railway
 Gwili Railway
 Pontyates Primary School 
 Five Roads Primary School
 Coalfields Regeneration Trust
 Heritage Lottery Fund

The need and demand for the project was demonstrated by the popularity of 
the open days held at the site over the past 12 months.

On the first open day in September 2017 had an estimated 250 paying adults 
and children attended, with broadly similar numbers on subsequent open 
days.  Currently the public are only able to visit the site on scheduled days, 
although the site is now open to visitors by arrangement on Saturdays 
throughout the year.  As further expansion of the facilities take place and 
subject to availability of our volunteers, the number of open days will steadily 
increase.

Successful Volunteer Recruitment Day, October 28th 2017 and Christmas 
themed event on December 10th 2017 created a positive buzz around the 
project. 

August Bank Holiday 2018 – Afternoon Train Rides and Nature Trial – 130 
people attended. Momentum is building and there is an appetite for future 
events. 

The project is run entirely by volunteers and there are many opportunities 
available to them to participate across a range of activities/disciples, e.g. 
mechanical and electrical engineering, building/construction, design, 
marketing/finance, project management, IT and environmental management. 
The site is easily accessible from Llanelli and surrounding areas and is 
adjacent to the National Cycle Network, Route 47, adding to the unique 
attractiveness of the location.  

The organisation has actively engaged with the Probation Service, Llanelli 
Naturalists, Llanelli Community Heritage, Llanelli Rural Council and the 
Territorial Army. 

Contributing to 
key Strategies

The project will align its objectives with:
 Integrated Community Strategy for Carmarthenshire
 The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (2015)
 Transformations – Strategic Plan for Carmarthenshire 2015- 2030
 Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration Strategy
 Welsh Government Tackling Poverty Strategy
 Tourism Destination Management Plan - 4 key priorities:

o Cycling
o Heritage and Culture
o Skills and Training
o Events

Tudalen 22



LMMR’s project meets the objectives of the Destination Management Plan, 
namely:

 Provide clear ‘reasons to visit’ and deliver compelling, unique, 
memorable and high quality visitor experiences.

 Create a strong positioning for the county in the context of the 
country.

 Harness the collective strengths of all businesses and organisations 
that have a role in supporting the visitor economy.

 Define Carmarthenshire’s unique tourism offer and attract new and 
existing visitors to the town through innovative and cost-effective 
marketing.

 Improve access to and within Carmarthenshire to encourage better 
visitor flow, longer stays and higher spend.

 Ensure the highest standards of customer service.
 Maximise visitor spend and income retention to the local economy.
 Improve customer satisfaction to encourage longer and repeat visits, 

higher spend and levels of positive recommendation.
 Foster a culture of continuous improvement, value for money, best 

practice, learning and sustainability.
 Identifying measures of success and monitoring performance.

The project will address key themes highlighted in the above strategies:
 The creation of sustainable jobs in the longer term and the provision 

of skills/training including volunteering that will support people back 
into work.

 Encouraging a more entrepreneurial culture - starting with the idea, 
the project team is developing a sustainable business model. Their 
achievements have recently been recognised by the award from the 
Carmarthenshire Tourist Association being placed in the highly 
recommended category of the most exciting new tourism business.

 Working with local employers, colleges and schools to provide 
learning opportunities.

 Regeneration of an iconic heritage site which will complement other 
regeneration schemes in Llanelli.

 
Ownership/Lease Ownership:

Title Numbers – CYM341256/ CYM181437/ CYM141162

Business 
Plan/Officer 
Comments 

including details of 
support moving 

forward/next steps 
linked to growth 

and sustainability

LMMR is led by a small team of committed Directors and supported by an 
able and enthusiastic team of volunteers, all of whom have worked hard to 
develop the site to its current stage of development. All also recognise that 
as the facility becomes more commercial in terms of being open to visitors 
and developing trading revenues, additional competence will be required.

The Heritage Centre will generate revenue through a variety of means, 
including train tickets, refurbished rolling stock, income from group visits, 
staging of key events around heritage or vintage experiences, income from 
rental of the café to provide refreshments and also from a cycle hire depot.

Recommendation Award - £13,000.00

Subject to:
Securing match funding from the Welsh Government’s TAIS scheme.

Tudalen 23



Tudalen 24



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 25

Eitem Rhif  5
Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 29

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 37

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 39

Eitem Rhif  6
Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 41

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 45

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 49

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 55

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 61

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 65

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 69

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 75

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 79

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 85

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 14 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	2 LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNOD PENDERFYNIADAU'R CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR Y 11EG MEDI 2018.
	3 CYMORTH ARIANNOL O'R CRONFEYDD GRANTIAU CANLYNOL: GRONFA CYLLID A DARGEDIR  A'R  CRONFA'R DEGWM.
	Ychwanegiad 1
	Ychwanegiad 2

	5 CRONFA DATBLYGU EIDDO - DOLAWEN, CLOS FFERWS, CAPEL HENDRE.
	Ychwanegiad 1
	Ychwanegiad 2

	6 CRONFA CYCHWYN BUSNES/TWF BUSNES SIR GAERFYRDDIN.
	EXEC SUMMARY
	ANNEX 1 A&J Partners Ltd trading as Harry Watkins
	ANNEX 2 Mesen - Panel Paper-v3
	Ychwanegiad 3
	Ychwanegiad 4
	ANNEX 5 Williams Marine Ltd Signed panel paper
	ANNEX 6 Preseli Signed Report
	ANNEX 7 Rock the Dragon Ltd
	ANNEX 8 Treharne Officers Report
	ANNEX 9 Tre Fin Farm


